



CONSOLIDATED REPORT

OF

THE FINANCE AND PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

ON

THE COMMITTEES' CONSIDERATION OF THE 2025 ESTIMATES

OF

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE REPUBLIC OF THE GAMBIA

NOVEMBER 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

L.O INTRODUCTION	. 3
2.0 FINDINGS	. 5
2.1 Finance and Public Account Committee (FPAC)	. 5
01 Office of the President	. 5
02 National Assembly	. 5
03 Judiciary	. 5
04 Independent Electoral Commission	. 5
06 National Audit Office	. 5
12 Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs	. 6
14 Ombudsman	. 6
15 Centralised Services	. 6
35 The Ministry of Public Service, Administrative Reforms & Policy	
Coordination	. 6
2.2 STANDING COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE AND SECURITY	
07 Ministry of Defence	
08 Ministry of Interior	
2.3 SELECT COMMITTEE ON TOURISM, ARTS, CULTURE, YOUTH AND SPORTS.	
09 Ministry of Tourism and Culture	
22 Ministry of Youth and Sports	. 8
2.4 STANDING COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS	. 9
10 Ministry of Foreign Affairs, International Corporation and Gambians Abroad	. 9
2.5 STANDING COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RIGHTS AND CONSTITUTIONAL	
MATTERS	10
11 Ministry of Justice	10
33 National Human Rights Commission	10
2.6 SELECT COMMITTEE ON REGIONAL GOVERNMENT, LANDS, OMBUDSMAN AND IEC	10
16 Ministry of Lands & Regional Government	11
2.7 SELECT COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENT, SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT, AND NGO AFFAIRS	11
23 Ministry of Environment, Climate Change and Wildlife	11
25 Ministry of Fisheries and Water Resources	11
29 Ministry of Petroleum and Energy	11
2.8 SELECT COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT	12

17 Ministry of Agriculture	12
2.9 SELECT COMMITTEE ON MONITORING OF GOVERNMENT PROJECTS	13
18 Ministry of Transport, Works and Infrastructure	13
2.10 SELECT COMMITTEE ON TRADE & REGIONAL INTEGRATION	14
19 Ministry of Trade, Regional Integration and Employment	14
2.11 SELECT COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING & ICT	14
20 Ministry of Basic and Secondary Education	15
24 Ministry of Information	16
27 Ministry of Higher Education, Research, Science & Technology	17
28 Ministry of Communications and Digital Economy	17
2.12 SELECT COMMITTEE ON HEALTH, DISASTER, REFUGEES, &	
HUMANITARIAN RELIEF	17
21 Ministry of Health	17
2.13 SELECT COMMITTEE ON GENDER, CHILDREN AND SOCIAL WELFARE	18
31 Ministry of Gender, Children and Social Welfare	18
3.0 SUMMARY TABLE OF THE TOTAL SAVINGS	20
.0 CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATIONS	21

1.0 INTRODUCTION

In accordance with Section 152 of the 1997 Constitution of The Gambia, the Minister of Finance and Economic Affairs presented the Estimates of Revenues, Recurrent and Development Expenditures for the Republic of The Gambia for the Fiscal Year 2025 to the National Assembly on Friday, November 15, 2024.

The Minister informed the Assembly that the budget is anchored on fiscal consolidation and strategic investments, representing a significant step towards achieving macroeconomic stability and sustainable development.

The 2025 budget estimates project a total revenue and program grants of D32.10 billion, reflecting a 24% increase from the previous year. This growth is primarily driven by enhanced domestic revenue mobilization efforts and sustained support from development partners. The government anticipates a 23% increase in tax revenue, attributed to improved tax policies, strengthened compliance measures, and the implementation of digital solutions in tax administration.

Key highlights of the 2025 budget include:

- > A projected economic growth rate of 5.8%, supported by stability in the macroeconomic environment and sustained growth in productive sectors.
- > A continued reduction in the debt-to-GDP ratio, expected to decline to 66% in 2025, down from 72% in 2023.
- > Significant investments in human capital, with a 30% average increase in salaries for core civil service employees and enhancements in allowances for lower-grade staff.

- > An allocation of D11 billion (29% of the budget) to debt service, reflecting the resumption of debt servicing following the conclusion of the Debt Service Suspension Initiative.
- > A focus on key sectors such as agriculture, education, health, and infrastructure development, aligning with the Recovery-Focused National Development Plan.

The Minister further indicated that the 2025 budget demonstrates fiscal discipline, with a projected gross deficit of only D198.32 million, or 0.10% of nominal GDP—the lowest in the past decade. This represents a 67% reduction in the budget deficit compared to 2024, underscoring the government's commitment to fiscal sustainability.

As mandated by Standing Orders 81(1) and 84(1)(2), various committees of the National Assembly have scrutinized the draft estimates and prepared recommendations. These findings have been submitted to the Finance and Public Accounts Committee (FPAC) for consolidation.

This report presents FPAC's consolidated findings and recommendations based on submissions from various Committees. The report is accompanied by an addendum detailing reallocations and reductions to various budget lines of Ministries, Departments, and Agencies (MDAs) and savings realized thereof.

2.0 FINDINGS

2.1 Finance and Public Account Committee (FPAC)

01 Office of the President

A total of 25,400,000 and 19,000,000 were reduced from the recurrent and development budgets, respectively. It is recommended that the 3,000,000 Operating Cost under the development budget be utilized as Personnel Emoluments (PE) and Operating Costs (OC) for the National Disaster Management Agency (NDMA).

02 National Assembly

The sum of **6,250,000** was reduced from the recurrent budget whereas **5,000,000** was reduced from the development budget.

03 Judiciary

While the recurrent budget of the Judiciary remained untouched, 30,200,000 was reduced from the development budget.

04 Independent Electoral Commission

The sum of **86,101,338** was reduced from the recurrent budget. An amount of **22,100,000** was reduced from the **57,100,000** budgeted for vehicles on the development budget, leaving a balance of D**35,000,000**.

06 National Audit Office

A total of **5,528,159** was reduced from the recurrent budget, but the development budget remains the same.

12 Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs

The sum of 14,481,500 was reduced from the recurrent budget, out of which 1,500,000 was subsequently added back. A total of 70,594,500 was reduced from the development budget.

14 Ombudsman

Owing to the inadequacies of the estimates, no deduction was made on any of the budget lines. However, the Committee recommends to allocate 8,000,000 from the savings to purchase vehicles.

15 Centralised Services

The sum of **106,187,000** was reduced from this budget entity.

35 The Ministry of Public Service, Administrative Reforms & Policy Coordination

Owing to the inadequacies of the estimates, no deduction was made on any of the budget lines.

2.2 STANDING COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE AND SECURITY

A total saving of 33,250,000 was cut from the estimates of the Ministries of Defence and Interior and reallocated to the budget of The Gambia Police Force, The Gambia Fire and Rescue Services, and The Gambia Immigration Department.

07 Ministry of Defence

RECOMMENDATION:

 Sufficient funding is requested to support the implementation of the reviewed Terms and Conditions of Service (TACOS) for the Armed Forces.

08 Ministry of Interior

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. An amount of 3,500,000 should be allocated to purchase a vehicle for the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Interior.

POLICE (Law Enforcement and Crime Prevention)

2. Despite the reallocation of 8,000,000 to the budget line for vehicles, the Committee recommends an additional 7,000,000 to complete the purchase of two trucks for the Police Intervention Unit and pay for outstanding arrears.

DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY THE GAMBIA

3. An additional amount of D44,259,000 should be allocated to the Agency to allow for the recruitment of personnel.

PRISONS

An allocation of 7,550,000 is highly required to be distributed to the following previously unallocated items:

- Maintenance of Equipment: 150,000
- Uniforms and Protective clothing: 2,000,000 (1,500,000 for officers and 500,000 for inmates)
- Training: 1,000,000 to support the training of officers at tertiary institutions and other capacity-building initiatives
- Vehicles: 4,000,000 for the purchase of a new truck
- Support to Juvenile inmates' rehabilitation: 200,000 required to support the training of juvenile inmates.

FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE

4. An amount of 2,000,000 is needed to increase the Purchase of Fuel and Lubricants budget line (2213101) to 11,000,000.

5. Additionally, an amount of 500,000 is required to augment the estimated amount to 3,500,000 under the Travel Expenses budget line (2211101).

2.3 SELECT COMMITTEE ON TOURISM, ARTS, CULTURE, YOUTH AND SPORTS

The Select Committee on Tourism, Arts, Culture, Youth, and Sports has made several observations and recommendations regarding the budget allocations for the Ministry of Tourism and Culture and the Ministry of Youth and Sports.

09 Ministry of Tourism and Culture

The committee observed that the budget line 2221124 (Operating Costs) appears in both the Recurrent and Development Budget. As a result, the committee recommends that the 2,000,000 under the recurrent budget be redistributed to various budget lines in the Recurrent as specified in the addendum.

Recommendation

1. The Committee strongly recommends that the Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs (MoFEA) disburse funds budgeted for subvented institutions to adequately cater for their monthly Personnel Emoluments (PEs) and Operating Costs (OCs).

22 Ministry of Youth and Sports

The Committee noted that Budget line 3111203 "Construction of Office Building" appears in both the Recurrent and Development Budgets. Consequently, the committee recommends reallocating the 3,500,000 under the recurrent budget to various budget lines as specified in the addendum.

Issues Raised:

- Regarding the proposed salary increment, heads of satellite institutions under the Ministry informed the Committee that this increment will only affect the central government and not the subvented institutions.
- 2. The Committee also observed that the budgets of the sub-vented institutions under MoYS except for PIA are reduced in the 2025 Estimates. This reduction affects all the OCs and some of the PEs.
- 3. The various heads of the satellite institutions under MoYS also informed the Committee that the amounts approved in the previous budget were not disbursed to them as approved.
- 4. The Project Coordinator of Gambia Songhai Initiative (GSI) also informed the Committee that an amount of 3.2 million was approved in the 2022 budget for the purchase of a tractor but only D1M was disbursed to them so far. In this regard, the Committee recommends for an amount of 2.2 million to be allocated to GSI.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. The Committee strongly recommends that the Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs disburse funds budgeted for sub-vented institutions to adequately cater for their monthly Personnel Emoluments and Operating Costs.

2.4 STANDING COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS

10 Ministry of Foreign Affairs, International Corporation and Gambians Abroad

The Committee observed that the Ministry made a total submission of D15,000,000 to the Cabinet for purchase of vehicles. However, there was an approval of GMD436,000,000 which was meant for the purchase of vehicles during the OIC summit. In this regard, the Committee recommends that GMD421,000,000 be reallocated to the Centralized Services and the GMD15,000,000 be maintained for the purchase of Vehicles for the Ministry.

The Committee made a total deduction of **GMD95,016,338**, reallocated **GMD74,312,088**, and made a total savings of **GMD20,704,250**.

2.5 STANDING COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RIGHTS AND CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS

The Standing Committee Human Rights and Constitutional Matters has thoroughly reviewed and scrutinized the budget of the Ministry of Justice and National Human Rights Commission with a focus on ensuring the allocation of resources to meet their objectives. During the process, the Committee did not make any cuttings from NHRC's budget and recommended that it stand as part of the final estimate, and also no deductions were made from the Ministry's budget.

11 Ministry of Justice

RECOMMENDATION:

The Committee recommends an allocation of 60 million on the reparation budget line and support for victims.

33 National Human Rights Commission

RECOMMENDATION:

1. The Committee recommends that the Commission's budget be disbursed as it is and on time to enable the Institution to function better.

2.6 SELECT COMMITTEE ON REGIONAL GOVERNMENT, LANDS, OMBUDSMAN AND IEC

16 Ministry of Lands & Regional Government

The Committee made a total deduction of **D9,200,000.00** (Nine Million Two Hundred Thousand dalasi) from various budget lines. However, the deducted amount was reallocated to various budget lines that needed it most as detailed in the addendum.

2.7 SELECT COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENT, SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT, AND NGO AFFAIRS

The Committee was tasked to review the estimates of these Ministries and proffer advice to the Finance and Public Accounts Committee in particular and the National Assembly in general.

23 Ministry of Environment, Climate Change and Wildlife

On the Ministry of Environment's estimates, a total deduction of 1,425,000 was cut from eight budget items and all were reallocated to other budget lines within the Ministry as shown on the addendum.

25 Ministry of Fisheries and Water Resources

On the estimates of the Ministry of Fisheries, a total deduction of **1,050,000** is cut from nine budget items and redistributed as indicated in the addendum.

29 Ministry of Petroleum and Energy

On the estimates of the Ministry of Petroleum and Energy, a total deduction of **1,770,158** was made on 12 budget lines, which is redistributed to budget lines like Laboratory Equipment & Instruments and Research & Development. These lines are highly important to ensure the effective functioning of the Geology Department.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

- 1. Despite the allocation of 1,270,158 to the budget line **3112106 Laboratory Equipment and Instruments**, the Committee recommends further augmentation. The Department is making concerted efforts to maintain an operational lab to carry out inhouse laboratory tests and analysis, thus the laboratory would need technicians to perform tests and conduct research.
- 2. The Department is also in dire need of the following equipment:
 - Complete Sieve analysis set
 - Petrographic Microscopes
 - Moisture tester
 - Penetrometer used for stiffness test.
- 3. It is noted that budget line **2219105 Research & Development** is fundamental for geological surveys and field activities. The allocation of funds to this budget line will provide technical materials for use in the mapping and survey of mining and quarrying sites. It will also facilitate the work of the department as follows:
 - Conduct geological mapping and investigation for mineral occurrences viz-a-viz stream sediment survey and analysis of samples.
 - Conduct mapping to make an inventory of Mining and Quarrying Sites.
 - Monitor the Mining and Quarrying activities countrywide.
- 4. The Committee recommends an allocation of 500,000 to Domestic Cooking Energy and 1,500,000 to Platts Subscription Fees budget lines.

2.8 SELECT COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

17 Ministry of Agriculture

The Select Committee has thoroughly reviewed and scrutinized the budget of the Ministry of Agriculture with a focus on ensuring the allocation of resources meets the Ministry's objectives. During the process, the Committee could not make any deduction from the Ministry's budget. However, the Committee recommends an inclusion on the below budget lines and the PEs and OCs for the Sub-vented institutions that were omitted.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

- 1. 16 million for WALIC's PE and OC that was omitted to be from the savings made by FPAC.
- 2. NARI's arrears to Social Security amounting to D20 million to be tapped from the Centralized Services.
- 3. GGC's areas of D553 million be tapped from the Centralized Services to pay the debt.
- **4.** An allocation of D700 million for the Capitalization of GGC for the year 2025 be considered by the National Assembly.

2.9 SELECT COMMITTEE ON MONITORING OF GOVERNMENT PROJECTS

18 Ministry of Transport, Works and Infrastructure

The Committee noted, with disappointment, the absence of the officials of the Ministry of Transport, Works and Infrastructure. Thus, the Committee decided to leave the estimates of the ministry as presented in the estimates. However, the allocations on budget item **181701 Public Building and Facilities Management Authority (NPBFMA)** should be cut and reallocated to FPAC savings. This allocation was intended to support the Public Buildings and Facilities Authority (which was supposed to be created after the passage of the Public Buildings and Facilities Authority Bill, 2022). However, the Bill is now withdrawn.

2.10 SELECT COMMITTEE ON TRADE & REGIONAL INTEGRATION

19 Ministry of Trade, Regional Integration and Employment

The Select Committee on Trade and Regional Integration observed that the budget lines for GCCPC appeared twice in the budget thus, it recommends the reallocation of the budget line **191402** (GCCPC) to various budget lines in the Recurrent as indicated in the addendum.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

- 1. The Committee recommends that the MoFEA augment the PE of The Gambia Standards Bureau to GMD4,082,423.13 as it is merged with the Department of Weight and Measures. Note that the budget lines of the Weight and Measures are all zeroized in the 2025 budget estimates.
- 2. The various heads of the satellite institutions under MoTIE informed the Committee that the amounts approved in the previous budget were not disbursed to them. Thus, the Committee recommends that the MoFEA disburse these funds as it is mostly meant for PEs.

2.11 SELECT COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING & ICT

The Select Committee on Education, Training and ICT convened a Budget Bilateral meeting with ministries and satellite institutions under its purview. The meeting included representatives from the Ministry of Basic and Secondary Education (MoBSE), Ministry of Higher Education, Research Science and Technology (MoHERST), Ministry of Information, Media and Broadcasting Services, and the Ministry of Communication and Digital Economy (MoCDE).

During the session, the Committee conducted a thorough examination of the budgets presented by these institutions. Detailed discussions were held with ministry representatives regarding areas where budget allocations could be reduced as well as those requiring increased funding. The Committee implemented several changes, including both reductions and increments to various budget lines, with the aim of ensuring a more effective allocation of resources to areas of greatest need.

Representatives from the attending ministries provided concise explanations of the financial constraints faced by their respective departments. They emphasized the need for additional funding to fulfil their mandates and functions effectively. Ministry officials also highlighted existing debts owed to various institutions and appealed to the National Assembly for assistance in securing adequate fund allocations to enhance the overall effectiveness of their operations.

It is noteworthy that representatives from the Ministry of Communication and Digital Economy were absent from the Bilateral meeting. As a result, the Committee did not review or modify the budget for this ministry, leaving it unchanged from its original submission.

This process demonstrates the Committee's commitment to ensuring the judicious use of public funds while addressing the critical needs of the education, research, and communication sectors.

20 Ministry of Basic and Secondary Education

RECOMMENDATIONS

- 1. The Committee recommends that under School Improvement Grant (SIG) there is a shortfall of 32,015,577 and what has been approved this year 2025 is below what has been requested as SIG is counted per head. The Ministry requested 320,505,717.5 but 288,490,140.00 was approved by the Ministry of Finance.
- 2. The Committee recommends that there should be an increment on this budget line (contribution to international organizations) as MoBSE owes WAEC over 600,000 million and the current budget is below what is requested.

- 3. The committee flagged that there is a shortfall of 58.9 million under the budget line for school feeding and it does not cater for the increment in the number of students in the schools.
- 4. The Committee recommends that the National Library Services Authority should be independent and not under MoBSE
- 5. The Committee recommends that the Budget line for Vehicles under capital expenditure be increased by 8,000,000 making it 12,000,000 to enable the ministry to buy a coaster for the lower-paid staff and a vehicle for the National Library.
- 6. The Committee recommends that the budget line for monitoring be augmented to improve the quality of teaching and enhance effective monitoring.
- 7. The Committee recommends that 10 million be added to Building and Structures to complete the building of regional offices in CRR and the rest be completed in the subsequent years.
- 8. The Committee recommends that the 30 million owed to WAEC be paid by the Ministry of Finance.

24 Ministry of Information

RECOMMENDATIONS:

- 1. The Committee observed that the budget line for Education services which serves as a medium for disseminating information to the public like the Mansa Kunda program which cuts across all MDAs; is currently zero on the 2025 budget estimates. The Committee recommends that the budget line for Education Services be augmented to the amount requested i.e. 4,920,000.
- 2. The Committee recommends that the budget for Consultancy be augmented as 7,000,000 was requested and only 1,000,000 was approved. The Committee deemed this increment necessary because they will embark on developing a Strategic Plan for the Ministry as well as hiring a consultant for the creation of the Regulations for the ATI and the Data Protection Act.
- 3. The Committee recommends for the budget line for advertisement and publication be augmented from 1 million to 6 million for the strategic management and the same line for information services from 50,000 to 5,250,000.

4. The Committee recommends that the budget for the Purchase of Motor Vehicles be augmented as 6,000,000 was requested and 3,500,000 was approved as the ministry is struggling with the issue of vehicles. Currently, the Minister does not have a utility vehicle as his vehicle is given out to run official functions.

27 Ministry of Higher Education, Research, Science & Technology

RECOMMENDATIONS:

- 1. The Committee observed that the allocation for Telecommunications in the year 2025 was 1,700,000 and recommends the deduction of 1,000,000 from the estimates to be reallocated to the budget line for Open Scholarship. This budget line has the biggest owing especially to UTG.
- 2. The Committee recommends the completion of payment for Lot 2 of the UTG Faraba Banta Campus project which amounts to \$8,060,681.84.
- 3. The Committee recommends that the arrears owed to institutions (UTG, Gambia College, and USET), and over 36 million arrears owed to GTSC for the transportation services for students to Faraba Bantang Campus be paid.

28 Ministry of Communications and Digital Economy

RECOMMENDATION:

1. The budget be left as it is in the estimates.

2.12 SELECT COMMITTEE ON HEALTH, DISASTER, REFUGEES, & HUMANITARIAN RELIEF

21 Ministry of Health

The Select Committee has thoroughly reviewed and scrutinized the budget of the Ministry of Health with a focus on ensuring the optimal allocation of resources to meet its strategic objectives. During the process, the Committee made some deductions from various budget lines which amount to **D44,000,000**. However, the deducted amount was subsequently reallocated to other budget lines as deemed necessary, in alignment with the Ministry's priorities and operational requirements. Therefore, the total additions proposed by the Committee stand at **D184,150,000**.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. The Committee recommends an additional amount of **140,000,000** million to meet the adjustments made to certain budget lines to address the discrepancies in their PE and OC.

2.13 SELECT COMMITTEE ON GENDER, CHILDREN AND SOCIAL WELFARE

31 Ministry of Gender, Children and Social Welfare

The Select Committee on Gender Children and Social Welfare has thoroughly reviewed and scrutinized the budget of the Ministry, with a focus on ensuring the optimal allocation of resources to meet its strategic objectives. During the process, adjustments were made to certain budget lines, resulting in reductions of other budget lines amounting to D850,000. However, these funds were subsequently reallocated to other budget lines as deemed necessary, in alignment with the Ministry's priorities and operational requirements.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. The Family Strengthening Program (FSP), is a strategic initiative designed to provide essential support to the country's most vulnerable populations. With a commitment to disbursing monthly cash transfers of **GMD 1,000 per beneficiary** to alleviate economic pressures, the FSP focuses on four primary groups:

individuals with multiple disabilities, the elderly 70 years and above, orphans and vulnerable children, and female-headed households.

The Committee recommends an augmentation of D2.8 million under budget line 3103 Social Welfare (code 2218106 Special and Technical Materials and code 2218106 Disabilities and Rehabilitation) for proper implementation of its function.

 The SWEDD+ is a Multi-Sectoral Project funded by the World Bank to the tune of \$25 Million 2023-2028 and implemented by the Ministry of Health, the Ministry of Gender, Children and Social Welfare, the Ministry of Basic and Secondary Education, the Ministry of Youth and Sports and the National Population Commission Secretariat.

As of 2025 Estimate its budget line is Zero under the Ministry of Gender, therefore the Committee recommends an allocation of D1.5 million as counterpart funding from Government.

3.0 SUMMARY TABLE OF THE TOTAL SAVINGS

BUDGET ENTITY	SAVINGS	TOTAL SAVINGS
Office of the President	41,400,000	
National Assembly	11,250,000	
Ministry of Finance and	77,576,000	
Economic Affairs		
Centralized Services	106,187,000	
The Judiciary	30,200,000	
National Audit Office	5,528,159	416,046,747
Independent Electoral	108,201,338	
Commission		
Ministry of Foreign Affairs,		
International Corporation	20,704,250	
and Gambians Abroad		
Ministry of Transport, Works	15,000,000	
and Infrastructure		

4.0 CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATIONS

Following a thorough review of budget submissions from various Institutions, Ministries, Departments, and Agencies (MDAs), and after careful consideration of recommendations put forward by various committees, FPAC recommends the following:

- 1. That the Chairpersons of all Committees must attend subsequent validation of the FPAC Consolidated Report on the budget bilateral.
- 2. Moving forward, all MDAs must submit their Staff Nominal Roll, Fixed Asset Register, and all other relevant supporting documents to the National Assembly, at least 30 days before their budget bilateral with Committees.
- 3. The Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs (MoFEA) should conduct a comprehensive revenue review across government institutions, with a particular focus on self-generated revenues by MDAs, and implement measures to improve domestic revenue mobilization before the 2026 budget bilateral.
- 4. The Ministry of Finance and Economic Affairs (MoFEA) should spearhead an initiative to replace existing streetlights nationwide with solar-powered alternatives to reduce the government's electricity expenditure.
- 5. The National Audit Office (NAO) should consider conducting a thorough revenue audit across all MDAs.
- 6. The budget submitted by the Office of National Security (ONS) should be restored by the Ministry of Finance. However, the Operating Costs totaling 61,980,000 should be reduced to 49,480,000 and the Capital Expenditure 12,500,000 should be reduced to 8,000,000.
- 7. Going forward, the budget line for the Civil Service Staff Loan under Centralized Services needs to be moved to the budget of the Personnel Management Office (PMO).
- 8. The Ministry of Finance should create a budget line for Arbitration and Court Awards under the Ministry of Justice, rather than under Centralized Services.

- 9. The Emergency Relief budget line under Centralized Services should be transferred to the National Disaster Management Agency (NDMA) under the Office of the Vice President.
- 10. The total amount of 436,000,000 under the Ministry of Foreign Affairs for the settlement of arrears should be moved to Centralised Services.
- 11. Exchange Concession Allowances (ECA) under MoFA should remain untouched.
- 12. The budget of the National Population Secretariat under the Office of the Vice President be increased from 15,170,000 to 18,600,000 to cover the cost of two International Training Programs scheduled for 2025.
- 13. The budget for the Ombudsman be augmented by 8,000,000 to purchase vehicles which was previously budgeted and omitted by MoFEA.
- 14. The PE of the National Social Protection Secretariat amounting to 22,000,000 be restored by the Ministry of Finance.
- 15. An allocation of 6,000,000 be allocated to the National Assembly for the purchase of a staff bus and 3,136,747 for Office Equipment (for middle and lower-level staff).
- 16. Under the Ministry of Trade, The Gambia Standards Bureau is to be allocated 4,100,000 to augment their PE.
- 17. The PE for WALIC under the Ministry of Agriculture be allocated with 16,000,000.
- 18. The PE for DLEAG under the Ministry of Interior be augmented to D18,000,000.
- 19. Under MOHERST the budget line for Open Scholarships be increased by D47,000,000 and School Bus Service (GTSC) be increased by D36,029,209.

- 20. Under MOBSE, D30,000,000 and D32,000,000 in respect of WAEC and School Improvement Grant (SIG) arrears respectively be settled.
- 21. An amount of 10,000,000 be allocated to The Ministry of Health; 5,000,000 to PEs and 5,000,000 to OC for Edward Francis Small Teaching Hospital.
- 22. An amount of 2, 000,000 be allocated to the SWEDD+, 2,000,000 to Specialized and Technical Materials for the disabled, and 2,000,000 to Family Strengthening Program under the Ministry of Gender.
- 23. An amount of D200,000 be allocated to the Ministry of Interior for Rehabilitation of Juvenile Inmates.
- 24. An amount of 2,200,000 be allocated to the Ministry of Youth and Sports under the Songhai Initiative Project.
- 25. An amount of 500,000 be allocated to the Ministry of Petroleum and Energy for Domestic Cooking Energy.
- 26. An amount of 3,000,000 be allocated to the Ministry of Information under education services and 2,000,000 to the Information Service Program
- 27. An amount of 7,000,000 be allocated to the Gambia Prisons Services for: Uniforms and Protective gear for inmates and services, 2,000,000 training for both Officers and Inmates, 1,000,000, and Vehicle for the transport of inmates, 4,000,000
- 28. An amount of 2,000,000 be allocated to Fire and Rescue Services under the Ministry of Interior for fuel and lubricants.
- 29. An amount of 100,000,000 be allocated to the National Roads Authority for road rehabilitation.